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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT : © .

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO- ... .. e
AGEEB 1S PR 223

" Civil Action No.,og - CV - 0 0 3 4 g’KEB:NTGQ:_gm

= BEP, CLK
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DAVID L. HILDEBRAND, an individual,
Plaintiff,

Vs.

JEGS HIGH PERFORMANCE, INC.,

BJ’s TOOLS,

TOOL KING, and
WILMAR CORPORATION, a/k/a Performance Tool.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff, David Hildebrand, an individual, alleges as follows:

L PARTIES
1. Plamtiff, David Hildebrand, is an individual and resident of this judicial district.

2. Defendant, Jegs High Performance Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Ohio.

3. Defendant, BJ Tools is a company believed to be organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Washington.

4. Defendant, Tool King is a company organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Colorado. '
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5.

6.

10.

Defendant Wilmar Corporation, a/k/a Performance Tools, is a company organized
and existing, on information and belief, under the laws of the State of Washington.

1L JURISTICTION AND VENUE

The Court has original jurisdiction over plaintiff>s First through Fifth Claims for
relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1338(a).

Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. 1400(a) in that each of said
defendants are engaged in commercial activities in this District, and has purposefully
availed itself of the privilege of conducting business in this district, to an extent sufficient
to satisfy the requirements of establishing “residence™ for the purpose of the above

statute.

Hi. OPERATIVE FACTS

Plaintiff, David Hildebrand (hercinafter “Hildebrand™), is the inventor of certain know-
how for the removal of damaged bolts, lugnuts and other threaded connecting devices,
including the removal of devices where either the threads or outer edges thercof have been
damaged so that they cannot be removed using conventional tools,

Hildebrand set out to develop the device incorporating the invention, which Hildebrand
mtended to exploit on the commercial market for profit.

On April 14, 1998, Hildebrand’s invention was granted protection under United States
Patent No. 5,737,981, entitled “REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED CONNECTING
DEVICES.” A copy of said Patent (hereinafter “the 981 patent™) is attached hereto, labeled

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -2-
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11.  Hildebrand is informed and believes that defendants Jegs High Performance, BJ’s Tools,
Tool King, and Wilmar Corporation, a/k/a Performance Tool have engaged, and are now
engaged, in the manufacturing, advertisement, offering of sale, sale and/or distribution of
devices which infringe the Hildebrand ‘981 patent.

12. On information and belief, the trade names under which the defendants’ infringing devices
have been manufactured, advertised, offered for sale, sold and/or distributed include;
“Emergency Lug Nut Remover Socket Set”, “Hi-Lok Collar Removal Socket”, Lug Socket”,
and the part of model numbers of said infringing devices include M980, Collar-5, Collar-6,

Collar-8, Collar-10, and Coilar-set.

IV. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,737,981 against all Defendants)
13. Hildebrand hereby incorporates paragraphs 1 through 13 as though fully set forth at this
point.
14. On the basis of the actions of defendants as atleged above in paragraphs 11 and 12, each

of said defendants has violated Hildebrand’s rights under 35 U.S.C. 271(a) by making, using,
selling or offering for sale, within the United States, subsequent to April 14, 1998, and
witho;lt the express or implied authority or consent of Hildebrand, the invention described in
Claims 1-14 of United States Patent No. 5,737,981.

15. As a direct proximate result of Defendants infringing acts, Hildebrand has been damaged

in amounts 10 be determined at trial.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -3-



Case 1:09-cv-00349-REB-MEH Document 1 Filed 02/19/09 USDC Colorado Page 4 of 12

16. Plaintiff further alleges, on information and belief, that one or more of said Defendants
have committed the infringing act as alleged herein after having been notified of the fact that
said acts infringed U. S. Patent No. 5,737,981, and therefore said Defendants’ infringing acts
have been and are being committed willfully and intentionally.

17. As a result of the facts alleged in paragraph 16, Hildebrand is entitled to an increase in

damages, and an award of attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 284 and 285.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Injunction)
18. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 17 as fully set forth at this point.
19. As a result of Defendants’ infringing acts, Hildebrand is suffering, and unless

Defendants’ infringing acts are enjoined will continue to suffer, irreparable and incalculable
damage.

20. Hildebrand is therefore entitled to, and prays for, a preliminary and permanent injunction
under 35 U.S.C. 283, barring Defendants, and all parties acting by, through or on behalf of
said Defendants, from engaging in any further manufacture, use, sale, offering of sale, or
exploitation of any products or devices which infringe Hildebrand’s Patent

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafier set forth.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Seizure and/or destruction of infringing goods)
21. Hildebrand incerporates paragraphs 1 through 20 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -4-
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22. Hildebrand alleges on information and belief that as a result of Defendants’ infringing
acts there exists, within the United States, devices and materials which infringe Hildebrand’s
patent as well as marketing and promotional materials in which said infringing devices are
offered for sale, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 271(a).

23. Pursuant fo 35 U.S.C. 283 Hildebrand prays for an order directing the immediate seizure

and/or destruction of all of said infringing devices and related marketing materials.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafier set forth.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Accounting)
24. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 23 as though fully set forth at this point.
25. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized income as a result of
their infringing acts.
26. Hildebrand requests that Defendants be ordered to furnish full accounting of all such

income or other value realized from their infringing acts.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafier set forth

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Imposition of constructive trust)
27. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 26 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -5-
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28. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized and continue to realize
income from their infringing acts.
29. Hildebrand requests that all income realized by Defendants from their infringing acts be

placed in constructive trust for the benefit of Hildebrand.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

V. PRAYER FOR DAMAGES

Hildebrand seeks the following relief:

1. General Damages.

2. A preliminary and permanent injunction barring Defendants, and all persons acting by,
through or on their behalf, from using, making, distributing, selling or offering for sale
any devices currently sold, or any other devices, which infringe U. S. Patent 5,737,981.

3. An order directing the immediate seizure and/or destruction of all devices which
infringe U. §. Patent No. 5,737,981

4. Punitive damages according to proof.

5. Enhanced damages according to proof.

6. An award of all costs and attorney’s fees incurred in this action.

7. An award of any other costs associated with the filing and maintaining of this action

that the Court can enter, using its inherent power.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -6-
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PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY AS TO ALL CAUSES.

Respectfully submitted this I Ci day of February, 2009

)/ g

Da¥Vid L. Hildebrand
Plaintiff Pro-Se

975 East 58" Ave. Unit-A
Denver, Colorado 80216
(303) 995-9533 PH.

(303) 466-1938 FAX.

COMPLINT FOR DAMAGES ~7-
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REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED

CONNECTING DEVICES
CROSS-REFERENCED PATENTS'

ﬂﬁskammﬁaﬁon&omv.s.ptmm
cation Ser. No. 08/531.336. filed Sep. 20. 1995. sow abag-
doned. .

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION
1. Field of the Invention
The investion relaies to a device for the

remaval of
the inven-

anemped

designed for the job.
Au:mptshuvebeenmidemovmdismﬂmw

lm.mwmmmmmdm
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For example. LS. Pat No. 3.161.090 to McLcllan discloses '

a mmmmmanmmsm&.
mm&mm:mammw
m&ﬁuﬂsaﬁamﬂ.ﬁehﬂkof&eﬂmis
d:ﬁgncdmcoopmnwi&medﬁc;ﬁmof&ednutufﬂw
smdsuasaobeoppes'tcmmnMMycnme
mc.mudspmﬁugmvaofmemmmm
is rotatcd. The use of flates as disclozed by Mcleilan is.
mwm.ﬁmiwdiu'eﬁeuivenssdnewme-mofme

Specificaily. the flutcs disclosed by

previously. memaxdﬂimsfmmcmwdofm
connecting devices axe limited in
G . 3 need comtinues to exist for a device per
mitﬁngmesimpl:mdeﬁccﬁvemmdofﬂnldedcon-
necting devices. The invention provides such &
device.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

It is. muefm.anehjmofﬂmpmminvmﬁmmé

pmvideamvaldeviccadap!edfo:me.movzlof
ducadcdcoaneuingdcviccsmuu:mdudinaﬁm
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direction, The removal device includes 2 body having 2 frst
end and a second cnd. wherein the first end includes 20
openingmmdingwwuddmsemndendoﬁhcbwy.m
openingi:sizndmmuﬁvea:hrndedmmecﬁngdﬂi:e'
Mkaﬁmdﬁeﬁmmmmm
m&maﬁ:udmu'amcmmmam -
dimmuﬂnwedngcnendsmudqmemdm
wherein the first diameter is larger than the secoud diameter.
Theupwingisdeﬁmdbyuimmﬁmfmdm:dedina
mmmm«mwmz
fumsindumsumfot
the body when & is positioned over-the-threaded
mmmmﬁmmmu
iniernal threading of the removal device (0 engage the
threaded connecting device (o cause the threaded coanecting
mwmhamw&r&mﬂﬁ
the tucaded connecting device
&lsmhuobieaofmeplmuinvcmiuwmﬁha
mwa!dcvieeindndinsu!aﬂm:minsmﬁhmme
tasernal surface. wherein the at least one cutting nowh &5
ww»mm«mm,
surface defiping e opening.
l!isaisonobjwtofﬂupusmiwemmmpmvidea
rcmvﬂdminewhudnﬁemfwm;indm;
pmje:ﬁmmmemndmd.memjemhdngsiud-d
shaped for use with 2 socket.
nswmmdmmwonwm
ammmmwsmukm
from the first end o the sccond end.
1 is another object of the present inveation to provide &
removal device wherein the openiag is ically

shape.
Other objects. and saliemt Features of the
mvumionwﬂibmuw&mmefonomdmﬁd

BRIEFDESCR]I’HONOFTHBDRAWGS;
Fﬁ.lisaqoss-swﬁomlviewofﬂaermﬂdeﬁce.
F!G.leampviewofmemmvddzvicc.
FK}.;!isahottmnvi:woflhcremovaldcvice.

Fﬁ.dismaltcrnﬂenmodimﬁmoflheremmldevice

mmcmbodmuofmemseminvmﬁmm
anmmtnwmodw«.mme
disclosed cmbodiments are merely exemplasy of the
i i embodied in varicus forms.
Mmlhedmﬂsdisdosulheminmmmbcimc-
mﬁduWMmﬂyalﬁeM&fa&edﬁmmﬂ
uthﬁsfwmadﬂngouesﬁliodhmcmhwmmakc
andfor use the invention.
With reference to FIGS. 1-3. aremoval device 10 adapted
for the rernova) of threaded coanecting devices is disclosed.
prosent i use of the tenu
“threaded connecting deviceis)" should be understood to
rﬁamdcvmhaﬁngapomfonwhichmstbcmmdm
fad!itztcmchmcntofﬂmmnnecﬁngdﬂiccwanobjeu.
Foreun@e.mcpr&mmwvaldevkem:ybeusedwim
mmendoabokandnmmgunentswhaemmmm
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the many uscs of the present device. -

Toe removel device 10 incindes a cylindcical body 12
m;:mmum.mmummuis
Wuammumuumuwm
lsmpcmimdsadhohnpaswmehndyna
the removal device 18 is used. The hollow cemex 18 also

‘The firt cod 14 includes a frusoconical opcaing 29
mmmmmmuﬁmwnm
wmaamwammn
ddmbdyﬂadjnﬁ&eﬁleﬁt‘dﬁehodyllln
mmmumammn
portion of the distance betweea the fist cnd 14 and the
<econd cad 16 of the body 13. In fact, the opesing 28 ia the
Pecfexred embodiment extends ouly about oae third of the
‘ﬁmm&ﬁnaﬂuaﬂmmm:‘d
the body 12

mmaam»m.mm
device threaded in a first direction. The ing 2@ coatin-
mymnmammﬁsmﬁmmuma
mm«xaimmummm
wherein the first dinmeter 24 is
anmmnamwnm
mmrbmnw.h:mﬂm
opposite 1o the first dicection in which the thrcaded con-
mmhmmaﬁmmmedm
mmmaﬁwmmmﬂ:m;mm

9

internal surface 22 of the body 12 wilibethreaded witha lefl -

mmmmymﬁmm
mmmmammmud(mmy.
mmmmndnmnﬂmm
m:mmmtmxmxnmube
understood thas while the thweading 28 oo the iatersal
surface 22 mast be is 2 dircction oppasiic the tircading
mmﬁmwmmmm
andupﬁmrvaqhmwihmaappﬁcﬂo-dm
removal device without departing from the spinit of the
present inveation.

mmmummmamm s0.

jnscenal surface 22 in a direction i

+5

uwmmmamwm#

mmmmnmmmgmumﬁ;

ﬂm-inms.ﬂ:mdmitmymﬁ
mnycmgnmchssmapnﬁngmnmeapﬂi-
mammmmmmm
spirit of the present invention. it cutting notches
muWMMMdMMMu

cussed below,

‘ Apojmnkseunadmmesmndemuqtﬁw
body 12. The pmjeaiwnissimdmdshpedfuuscwith
amupumiﬁagmermmaldeﬁeelﬂohemdm
it is placed over the tditeaded consecting device. As shows
inﬁG.lmwnjecﬁmnmybemngmdmapedfntuse

55

. 4 RS
with hexagoual shaped sockezs. Additionally. the second ead
16 inclades a square opening 34 designed for cogagement
with convestional square consecting clements used in
socket wreaches, and other tools. wiere different attach-
mmumﬁym:ﬂmmmm
ﬂmmnmmumn
projection 32. a vaziety of projection shapes azd
be used without depaxting from the spirit of the presest
imveation. Similarly, the second <nd 16 of the body 12 could
bemvidﬂdwjﬁahmﬂeﬁmm'wjm
wmmmo{mm-m(mm
4 removal device 198). ) - ¥
In use. the removal tool is place over a threadad cossect-
mmwmmmmmu
ﬂmmamﬂwmammrmaiuﬂk
then roamed in a dErection causing the tucading on e
inseras] surface to eagage the threaded connecting device by
o device is : 1 inued rotation of
the remnoval device canses fotation of the threaded conmect-

connecting .

It showld be usderstood that the body of the preseat
mmmumﬁmamam
depeading upon the application for which the device i3
Wmmmmummm
of other materials, where the applicaticn of the removal
mmhmmmmmum
mamdmmmwm@nmmd
the device.

‘While various preferred embodiments have beea showa
mmawmuwwmummm
mumwmmmmumm

T clamx - »
Lamvddwiecdapwdfwmerumﬂofdiﬁa:kw
mwmmmcm
a body haviag a first cnd 2od & second end, the first end
mumﬁmmmwmmm

e secured to the removal tool: and
mmammmsﬁmﬂnm
Mswﬁeeofﬁ:ermﬂdmﬁmtommemc
uaingdcﬁeemminadimuhnwm
dwmwvdofmewmnnecdngdwim.
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lﬁedeviccm:mrdingmdaiml.whadnmc fnternal
stxfaccincludsu!eastenewtﬁagmh.

J.Thedcvieeammdingmdmz.whetﬁns&idallcm

4. The device
cuuingnmuhﬁmpmvidedoaﬂninmmﬁsmdeﬁning
the opening. .

§. The device aceogding 1o claim 3. wherein the cuging
notches ms&mﬁhﬂymﬂiﬂdﬂtmtﬂeﬂqmm

cndfmheroompdmapmjwtioh.mepmpuionsizedmd
mapedfotusewimtheconm;em

7-dgdcﬁoemdingmctﬁmi.whﬁeinmepmjecﬁon 15

is shaped.

s,mavit:aceudingmﬁliml.wbueinmopeniag
ing in the second cnd of the body.

9.Thedmwammdinstndaiml.whueinmebodyis

l..Thedeviocaecotdiﬂgmcm’ml.whweinlhcopen‘mg
has a circular cross-sectional shape.
ll.mmiaammdhgmdﬁml.whuﬁnamﬂcis
secared to the second cod of the body.
lemwvndaﬁceMedfumewalefdiﬁcun
1o Temove uswledmsmmg-
'aqﬁn«iﬂlmmaﬁmmmﬂmmm
bodyheilgbollwasiteneadsmmeﬁm:ndmme
second cod: ’
thcﬁrﬂeadinchdingaﬁusmﬁuﬂy shaped opening
whidtextendswwndlheseooadendofmcbodyand
is defined by an internal surface of the body:
the opening §5 sized 0 receive a threaded conmecting
device threaded in a first direction. and the opening
conﬁnuouslympmﬁom:ﬁmﬁmnatmemstend
10 a sccond diameter as the opening extends toward the
second end. whesein te first diameter is targer thao the
second diameter:
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apojecdonsecumdteﬂle second cad of the body. the

5 pmjedionsimedudsbapedfotuscwiﬂlasocke!
panﬁlﬁnsmemmvddevicetobermwdwheni!is
ovuﬂteﬂmdedcomeaingdﬂieetobe

removed. whezein rotation of the body causes the
tmudingonmeinmﬂsmfaoeofdaemaldﬂiﬁe

abody'h:ﬂnclﬂntmdmdasemndmd.meﬁrsend
immmmmmmmm
ead of the body:

mmumw»mmo&mm
andksizedtomoeiveaduudedwnne@ingm
urudedinaﬁtszd'ncﬂm.whacinmemawnnfm
isﬂueadedin:seconddirwﬁonowositemem
dieuioainwhi:hlhethmdedmunecﬁng
thrudd;ﬂuopeniugconﬁnuwsiyupmfmmaﬁrs:
i attheﬁntendtoaswunddimrasme
opeﬁngumdswwudmmouﬁend.whueinm
mwummumﬁmm

_sasd sccond cnd of the body having a handle affixed
mumosommumeboﬁyisposiﬁoudmme
u:udsdeomeainsdevine.muiondmebodymm
saidﬂ:uﬂngmmemmﬂanﬁccofmcm
devin:wmetheﬂuudodcomecﬁngdeﬁams-
inglhcnuudedmnnecﬁngdﬂimtommina
dkeuionappmpriaefotuw:emvalofthemded
connecting device.

14. The device according to claim 1. wherein the remaval

100l is a wrench.

]
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